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Government—Wide Financial Analysis — Primary Government
Summary Statement of Net Position — June 30, 2020

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total

Current & other assets 3 6,588,157 $ 527538 $ 7,115,695
Capital assets 9,526,281 17.046.633 26,572,914

Total Assets $16,114,438 317,574,171 § 33,688,609
Current & other liabilities $ 1,360,574 $ 339,729 $ 1,700,303
Long-term liabilities 2,342 377 7.185.954 9,528,331

Total Liabilities $ 3,702,951 $ 7,525,683 £ 11,228,634
Deferred Inflows 3 1,898,707 $ 92,781 $ 1,991,438
Less - Deferred Outflows 871,721 87.631 959,352

Total Deferred § 1,026,986 § 5,150 § 1,032,136
Net Position:
Invested in Capital assets $ 8,542,222 $ 9,958,801 $ 18,501,023

Unrestricted 2,842 279 84.537 2,926,316
Total Net Position  $11,384,501 $10,043,338 § 21,427,839

Net position serves as a useful indicator of a govemment’s financial position. The City’s combined net position total is

$ 21,427,839 excluding discretely presented component units. By far, the largest portion of this represents investments in
capital assets, such as land, buildings, machinery, and equipment. Capital assets net of related debt total $§ 18,501,023. The
City of Norton uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; and thus these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate liabilities.

- a . . -

decrease are as follows:
Governmental Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 442,755
Operating Grants and Contributions 3,777,142
General Revenues:

Property Taxes 3,128,984
Other Local Taxes 4,763,631
Other 279.518
Total Revenues $12.392.030
Expenses:
General Government $1,412,791
Judicial Administration 415,276
Public Safety 2,819,987
Public Works 2,531,163
Health and Welfare 1,409,848
Education 2,505,966
Parks, Recreation, Culture 81,357
Community Development 1,411,696
Interest of Long Term Debt 37.756
Total Expenses $12,625,840
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 5 (233.810)

Included in the Total Expenses are non-cash items including depreciation. In addition, expenditures for capital assets are not
included, while Grant Contributions (revenues) for some types of projects are. This means that under the full accrual method,
the net position decreased by § 233,810 for FY2020. A portion of the decrease is accounted for by the planned use of prior
years’ surplus to fund local match need to complete ongoing grant funded projects around the City, in particular the
Downtown Revitalization Project.
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Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds ~ The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. This information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year. The City's governmental funds include the General Fund and the Special Revenue Funds.

Governmental Fund Highlights:

The largest sources of revenue in the General Fund for the year are as follows:

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Real Property Tax $ 2,107,104 1,977,083 2,029,508 2,111,134 2,062,943
Local Sales and Use Tax $ 1,664,033 1,639,810 1,518,284 1,541,644 1,609,549
Restaurant Food Taxes $ 1,479,388 1,496,570 1,388,390 1,401,747 1,395,556
Street & Highway Maintenance $ 870,397 870,286 845,049 860,487 841,655
Business License Taxes $ 801,979 789,539 779,120 750,765 842,303
Personal Property Taxes § 614,014 640,982 558,745 557,457 540,191

The City’s assessed value of taxable property for the year was $ 295,104,168. The real estate tax rate is $ .90 per § 100 of
assessed value and the personal property tax rate is $ 2.05 per $ 100 of assessed value. For the year, the percent of levy
collected was 98.26%. This includes collections of prior year’s delinquencies in addition to current year assessments, but is
calculated as a percentage of the current year tax base.

The City’s business type activity is the Water/Sewer Proprietary Fund. During the year this fund had an increase in net
position of § 266,559. In addition, cash and cash equivalents decreased by $ 119,834 to $250,945.

faim Lany s s emin  Aeses A memuE Mo § Asieeies WA ASApehavaEs Sua e J mass rass et ansains 7 s
Final Budget Actual Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Total Revenues $ 12,387,567 $12,678,911 § 291,344
Total Expenses 13,304,225 12.907.005 § 397,220
Excess of Revenues

Over Expenses §  (228.094)

Additional information may be obtained by contacting the City Manager, Mr. Fred L. Ramey, Ir. or the Director of Finance,
Mr. Jeff Shupe at the City of Norton offices 276-679-1160.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Norton
Norton, Virginia 24273

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Norton, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from matenial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AsnAidnmnt TV ansene nibilies,

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our andit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities and Towns issued by the Auditor of Public
Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overal! presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Norton, Virginia as
of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Listening better, trying harder, caring more. THAT’S RODEFER MOSS.
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CITY OFNORTON, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
Restricted cash (Note 2)
Investments
Receivables, net (Note 3)
Prepaids
Inventories
Due from other governments (Note 4}
Due from primary govermment
Due from component units
Internal balances (Note 5)
Net pension asset (Note 12)
Capital assets: {Note 7)
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding
Deferred outflows related to pensions (Note 12)
Deferred outflows related to other postemployment
benefits (Note 14)

Tntal daferrad nutflnwe of recanrrec

LIABILIIIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Acerued payroll and related liabilities
Accrued interest
Customer security deposits
Due to other governinental units
Due te primary government
Due to component unit
Deferred revenue - Grants
Noncurrent liabilties:
Net pension liability (Note 12)
Net other postemployment
benefits/liabilities (Note 14)
Due within ong year (Note 9)
Due in more than one year (Note 9)
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes
Deferred inflows related to pensions (Note 12)

Deferred inflows related to other postemployment
benefits (Note 14)

Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

EXHIBIT 1

Component Units

Primary Government Industrial
Governmental  Business-Type Development
Activities Activities Totals School Beard Authority

3 263,087 § 116076 % 379,163 § 572,716 % 1,727,769
15,503 134,869 150,372 416,576 107,781
3,010,245 - 3,010,245 - -
1,681,421 323,536 2,004,957 - 270,118

- - - 1,320 25,965

1,287,329 237,807 1,525,136 280,869 56,715
- - - 68,620 -
45,822 - 45,822 - -
284,750 (284,750) - - -
- - - 328,821 -

1,179,608 617,573 1,797,181 65,901 4,060,386
8,346,673 16,429,060 24,775,733 9,597,077 5,505,599
16,114,438 17,574,171 33,688,609 11,331,900 11,754,393
64,608 - 64,608 - -
546,431 80,776 627,207 1,213,440 -
260,682 6,855 267,537 213,351 -

R71 771 27 A1 050 137 1 47K 701 _
614,647 161,811 776458 161,720 39,748
117,016 14,883 131,899 276,475 -
10,108 28,166 38,274 110,271 -
- 134,869 134,869 - -
289,557 - 289,557 - -
- - - 114,442 -
329246 - 329,246 - -
267,047 39476 306,523 5,531,387 -
839,207 36418 875,625 1,241,216 -
215,354 284,850 500,204 713,418 18,417
1,020,769 6,825210 7,845,979 7,223,528 1,042,907
3,702,951 7,525,683 11,228,634 15,372,457 1,101,072
1,142,321 - 1,142,321 - -
605,077 89,446 694,523 1,208,152 -
151,309 3,335 154,644 147,023 -
1,898,707 92,781 1,991,488 1,355,175 -
8,542,222 9,958,801 18,501,023 9,662,978 9,565,985

- - - - 107,781

2,842.279 84,537 2,926,816 (13,631,919) 979,555

$ 11,384,501 § 10043338 $ 21427839 § (3,968941) § 10,653,321

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.






CITY OF NORTON, VIRIGNIA

EXHIBIT 3

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2020
Virginia
Public Nonmajor Total
Assistance Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments h 1,812  § 128,506 % 132,769  § 263,087
Restricted cash 15,503 - - 15,503
Investments 3,010,245 - - 3,010,245
Taxes Receivable 1,501,501 - - 1,501,501
Accounts receivable 179,920 - - 179,920
Due from other funds 470,338 99,343 - 569,681
Inventory - - - -
Prepaid - - - -
Due from component unit 45,822 - - 453822
Due from other governmental units 892,173 85,156 310,000 1,287,329
Total assets $ 6117314 % 313,005 % 442769 $ 6,873,088
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities b3 591,426 § 23221 % - $ 614,647
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 98,419 18,597 - 117,016
Thia ta nther fimde 18 |49 A0 NAA 70 198 R4 011
A RN T VULALHUII\JI.IL “iniv - - = -
Due to other governmental units 289,557 - - 289,557
Total liabilities 1,194,944 81,882 29,325 1,306,151
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Revenue - Grants 329,246 329,246
Unavailable/deferred taxes 1,436,235 - - 1,436,235
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,765,481 - - 1,765,481
FUND BALANCES (Note 6)
Nonspendable 355,486 - - 355,486
Restricted - - - -
Committed - - 413,444 413,444
Assigned 50,454 231,123 - 281,577
Unassigned 2,750,949 - - 2,750,549
Total fund balances 3,156,889 231,123 413,444 3,801,456
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 6,117,314 § 313,005 § 442,769 & 6,873,088

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 4

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources,
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Nondepreciable $
Depreciable, net

Certain receivables are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and other postemployment
benefits are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Deferred outflows of resources - pensions

Deferred outflows of resources - other postemployment benefits

Deferred inflows of resources - pensions

Deferred inflows of resources - other postemployment benefits
let pensio  abilit,

Net other postemployment benefits liabilities

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Bonds payable, including unamortized premiums

Deferred charge on refunding

Compensated absences

Capital lease payable

Accrued interest payable

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this staternent.

$ 3,801,456
1,179,608
8,346,673
9,526,281
293914
546,431
260,682
(605,077)
(151,309)
267,04
(839,207)
(1,055,527)
(895,712)
64,608
(252,064)
(88,347)
(10,108)
(1,181,623)
3 11,384,501
10



CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

EXHIBIT 5

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Virginia
Public Nonmajor Total
Assistance Governmental  Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
General property taxes b 3,155,065 3§ - ) - § 3,155,065
Other local taxes 4,676,409 - - 4,676,409
Permits, privilege fees, and regulatory licenses 12,391 - - 12,391
Fines and forfeitures 3,075 - 10,903 13,978
Use of money and property 52,108 - 1,026 53,134
Charges for services 428,777 - - 428,777
Miscellaneous 75,268 615 - 75,883
Recovered costs 125,791 - - 125,791
Intergovernmental 2,778,386 1,073,587 - 3,851,973
Total revenues 11,307,270 1,074,202 11,929 12,393,401
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 1,419,446 - - 1,419,446
Judicial administration 417,257 - - 417,257
Public safety 2,716,052 - 30,605 2,746,657
Public works 2,372,797 - - 2,372,797
Health and welfare 121,258 1,313,087 - 1,434,345
Education 2,505,966 - - 2,505,966
Parks, recreation and cultural 497,794 - - 497,794
Mammonitv davelanment I AN RYD - - 1 NAN R
Principal retirement 181,439 - - 181,439
Interest and fiscal charges 30,472 - - 30,472
Total expenditures 11,323,313 1,313,087 30,605 12,667,005
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (16,043) {238,885) (18,676) (273,604)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of surplus 3,004 - - 3,004
Insurance recovories 21,706 - - 21,706
Loan proceeds 20,800 - - 20,800
Transfers in - 240,000 - 240,000
Transfers out (240,000} - - (240,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (194,490) 240,000 - 45,510
Net change in fund balances (210,533} 1,115 (18,676) (228,094)
FUND BALANCES AT JULY 1 3,367,422 230,008 432,120 4,029,550
FUND BALANCES AT JUNE 30 5 3,156,889 § 231,123 § 413444 § 3,801,456

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2020

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables, net
Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash
Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outtlows related to pensions
Deferred outtlows related to other postemployment benefits

Total deferred outflows of resources
ITTARITITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Accrued interest

Due to other funds

Customer security deposits
Compensated absences

Debt obligations, current

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefit liabilities
Debt obligations

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to other post employment beenfits

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unresiricted

Total net position

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 7

Water
and Sewer

3 116,076

323,536
237,807
116,199

793,618

134,869

17,046,633

17,181,502
17,975,120

80,776
6,855

87,631

161,811
14,883
28,166

400,949

134,869

6,669

278,181

1,025,528

15,559
39476
36,418
6,809,651

6,901,104
7,926,632

89,446
3,335

92,781

9,958,801

84,537

S 10043338
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CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 8

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Water:
Local
Non-Local
Sewer:
Local
Non-Local
Connection fees
Penalties
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel
Fringe benefits
onfractuz  ervice
Other charges
Rent
Water purchased for resale
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Grant income
Interconnect expense
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues {expenses)

Change in net position

NET POSITION AT JULY 1
NET POSITION AT JUNE 30

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Water
and Sewer

$

904,336
195,270

1,232,258
333,437
11,960
48,846
28,742

2,754,849

515,887
206,587
65,75
461,560

6,000
55,129
669,815

2,780,731

(25,882)

487,660
(20,971)
(174,248)

292,441

266,559

9,776,779

b}

10,043,338
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EXHIBIT 9
CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Water
and Sewer
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and properties 3 2,982,632
Receipts from other sources {209,065)
Payments to suppliers (1,737,844)
Payments to employees (512,655)
Net cash provided by operating activities 523,068
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interfund borrowing (221,663)
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (221,663)
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets (433,781)
Contributed Capital - grant revenue 487.660
[nterconnect expense (20971
Principal paid {274,811)
Interest paid {179,336}
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities {421,239)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {119,834)
8. ND SHEQUIVA NT
Beginning at July 1 370,779
Ending at June 30 3 250,945
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
IS COMPRISED OF THE FOLLOWING:
Cash and investments 3 116,076
Restricted cash 134,869
Total 3 250,945
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss 3 (25,882)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 669,815
Pension expense net of employer contributions (17,942)
Other post-employment benefit expense net of
employer contributions (3,725)
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in:
Receivables, net 253912
Due from other governments (237,807)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (121,148)
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 1,322
Customer deposits 2613
Compensated absences 1910
Net cash provided by operating activities

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement,

3 523,068












Note 1.

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and
its component units. For the most part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support.

Statement of Net Position - The Statement of Net Position is designed to display the financial
position of the primary government (governmental and business-type activities) and its discretely
presented component units. Governments will report all capital assets in the government-wide
Statement of Net Position and will report depreciation expense, the cost of "using up"” capital assets,
in the Statement of Activities. The net position of a government will be broken down into three
categories - 1) net investment in capital asset; 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted.

Statement of Activities - The government-wide Statement of Activities reports expenses and
revenues in a format that focuses on the cost of each of the government's functions. The expense
of individual functions is compared to the revenues generated directly by the function (for instance,
through user charges or intergovernmental grants).

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include I) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund accounts for all revenues and expenditures applicable to the
general operations of the City, which are not accounted for in other funds.

Virginia Public Assistance Fund — The Virginia Public Assistance Fund accounts for the City’s local
Department of Social Services.
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Note 1.

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The City reports the following non-major governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than those derived from special assessments, expendable trusts or dedicated for
major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or
administrative action. Special Revenue Funds consist of the RBEG Revolving Loan Fund, Drug
and Gambling Funds, and Flag Rock Lighting Fund.

The City reporis the following major proprietary funds;

The water and sewer operation fund provides drinking water, maintains the facilities necessary to
provide this service, and provides maintenance to the sewer lines and pump stations. It's primary
revenue source is user charges and fees.

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by a governmental unit in a trustee capacity or as an agent
or custodian for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, or other funds. These
funds include Agency Funds.

™  TMasis of Accountin~

1. Govemmental Funds

Governmental Funds utilize the modified accrual basis of accounting under which revenues
and related assets are recorded when measurable and available to finance operations during the
year. Accordingly, real and personal property taxes are recorded as revenues and receivables
when billed, net of allowances for uncollectible amounts, except that property taxes not
collected within 45 days afier year-end are reflected as deferred revenues. Sales and utility
taxes, which are collected by the State, or utilities, and subsequently remitted to the City, are
recognized as revenues and receivables upon collection by the State or utility, which is
generally in the month preceding receipt by the City. Licenses, permits, fines and rents are
recorded as revenues when received. Intergovernmental revenues, consisting primarily of
Federal, State and other grants for the purpose of funding specific expenditures, are recognized
when earned or at the time of the specific expenditure. Revenues from general purpose grants
are recognized in the period to which the grant applies.

Expenditures, other than interest on long-term debt, are recorded as the related fund liabilities
are incurred. Interest on long-term debt is recognized when due except for interest due on July
1, which is accrued.

2. Propretary Funds
The accrual basis of accounting is used for the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund and the
discretely presented component unit, Norton Industrial Development Authority. Under the
accrual method, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earmned,
while expenses are recognized in the accounting period in which the related liability is incurred.

3. Fiduciary Funds
Agency Funds utilize the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The following procedures are used by the City in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1.

F.

Prior to March 30, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating and
capital budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments.
Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an Appropriations Resolution.

The Appropriations Resolution places legal restrictions on expenditures at the category level.
The appropriations for each category can be revised only by the City Council. The City
Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within governmental departments;
however, the School Board is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within the school
system's categories.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds (except for the School Fund). The School Fund

is integrated only at the level of legal adoption.

All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

For all City units, appropriations lapse on June 30.

All budget data presented in the accompanying financial statements is the revised budget as of
June 30, 2020.

Encumbrances and Commitments

The City utilizes encumbrance accounting in its governmental funds. Encumbrances are
recognized as a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the year in which a
purchase order, contract, or other commitment is issued. Generally, all unencumbered
appropriations lapse at year-end, except those for capital projects. Appropriations for capital
projects are continued until completion of applicable projects, even when projects extend more
than one fiscal year. Open encumbrances at fiscal year-end are included in restricted, committed,
or assigned fund balance, as appropriate.
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Note 1.

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

L

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

The City calculates its allowance for uncollectible accounts using historical collection data and, in
certain cases, specific account analysis. The allowance amounted to approximately $388,975 at
June 30, 2020, and is composed of the following:

General Fund:

Allowance for uncollectible property taxes 3 13,487
Allowance for uncollectible garbage taxes 41,952
Total General Fund 55,439

Water and Sewer Fund
Allowance for uncollectible water and sewer fee billings 333,536
Total Water and Sewer Fund 333,536
Total Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 3 388,975

Interfund Receivables and Pavables

A rtivritu heaturasan the fiinde 10 renracantativa Af landino/hareatnino arranmarante Aantotandina at tha

between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds". Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-
wide financial statements as "internal balances".

Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused compensated absences.
For government-wide reporting, a liability is recorded for compensated absences when services are
rendered and employees have earned the right to receive compensation for such services.

Pensions

The Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Political Subdivision Retirement Plan and Teacher
Employee Retirement Plan is a multi-employer, agent plan. For purposes of measuring the net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources relating to
pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City of Norton's
Retirement Plan and the additions to/deductions from the City's Retirement Plan's net fiduciary
position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by the Virginia Retirement
System (VRS). For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.
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CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 2. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

The above items are reflected in the financial statemments as follows:

Component Units

Primary
Government School NIDA
Deposits and investments:
Cash on hand b 950 % - 3 -
Deposits 528,585 989,292 141,667
Investments 3,010,245 - 1,693,883
A 3,539,780 % 089,292 § 1,835,550
Statement of net position:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 379,163 % 572,716 § 1,727,769
Investments 3,010,245 - -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 150,372 416,576 107,781
3 3,539,780  § 989,292 $ . 1,835,550

Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of certificates of deposits.

ot pe xe leceivabl

Property is assessed at its value on January 1. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property
as of January 1. Taxes are payable twice a year on May 15 and on October 15. The City of Norton bills

and collects its own property taxes.

Note 4. Due From Other Governmental Units

Component
Units
Primary School
Government Board Total
Commonwealth of Virginia

Local sales tax 3 286,536 § - 5 286,536
Shared expenses 24,862 - 24 862
Communication tax 14,231 - 14,231
E-911 tax 3,596 - 3,596
Other 536,977 - 536,977
School funds - 280,869 280,869
Welfare funds 85,156 - 85,156
Total Commonwealth of Virginia  § 951,358 % 280,869 % 1,232,227
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Note 7.

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Changes in Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in depreciable capital assets:

Primary Government

Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure

Equipment

Equipment special revenue

Total capital assets, depreciable

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure

Equipment

Equipment special revenue

Total accumulated depreciation

lotal capital assets, depreciable, net

Component Unit-School Board
Building

Improvements other than building
Equipment

Total capital assets, depreciable
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building

Improvements other than building
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, depreciation, net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2019 Additions Deletions July 30, 2020
$ 1,964,951 $ -3 - § 1,964,951
1,842,950 243,207 - 2,086,157
15,425,142 - - 15,425,142
4,627 982 42,149 8,702 4,661,429
157,812 25,205 - 183,017
24,018,837 310,561 8,702 24,320,696
1,531,535 27,393 - 1,558,928
1,364,441 45,498 - 1,409,939
8,966,645 211,785 - 9,178,430
3,518,087 193,699 8,702 3,711,786
116,267 7,375 - 123,642
15,496,975 485,750 8,702 15,974,023
3 8,041,804 > O(L/o,189) b - 3 5,340,0/3
3 11,370,171 b 176,757 $ - § 11,546,928
3,886,704 26,559 - 3,913,263
1,129,321 176,055 102,314 1,203,062
§ 16,386,196 $ 379371 § 102,314 $ 16,663,253
$ 4,418,628 216,136 - 4,634,764
1,458,777 192,319 - 1,651,096
799,370 b 83,260 $ 102,314 § 780,316
6,676,775 491,715 102,314 $ 7,066,176
$ 9,709,421 $ (112,344) 3 - § 9,597,077
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Note 7.

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Primary Government

Component Unit — NIDA
Building

Equipment

Less accurmulated depreciation

Total capital assets, depreciable

Business type activities

Building

Improvements other than building
Equipment

Total capital assets, depreciable
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building
CYUuLPLICILL

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, depreciable net

Changes in Capital Assets (Continued),

Balance Balance

July 1, 2019 Additions Deletions July 30, 2020

$ 8,146,193 § 1,108915 § - 5 9255108
406,353 - - 406,353
(3,923,083) (232,779) - {4,155,862)
$ 4629463 $§ 876,136 § - $ 5,505,599
$ 256454 § - 5 - $ 256,454
24,352,455 612,066 - 24,964,521
1,520,314 91,949 - 1,612,263
26,129,223 704,015 - 26,833,238
251,306 320 - 251,626
o T T B o TP o o S ok A T ol e ﬂ}EiF'ﬂ 44~
1,241,019/ F L, 94L - 1,294,139
9,734,363 669,815 - 10,404,178
$ 16,394,860 § 34,201 % - $ 16,429,060
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CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 9. Long-term Debt
Governmental Activities
General Obligations Bonds
Year ending 2014 GO Bond 2016 Rural Development 2018 Rural Development 2019 Rural Development
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 109,800 21,532 6,087 174 5,725 575 5,844 708
2022 113,100 18,500 - - 5914 386 6,052 500
2023 116,200 15,382 - - 6,109 191 6,267 285
2024 119,100 12,182 - - 2,124 21 5,090 68
2025 127,000 8.835 - - - - - -
2026-2029 261,300 7,139 - - - - - -
Totals $ 846,500 $ 83,570 $ 6,087 by 174 F 19,872 § 1,173 § 23,253 $ 1,561
Business Type Activities
General Obligations Bonds
Year Ending Sewer Facilities Bond Water Facilities Bond Sewer Facilities Bond Water Facilities Bond
June 30, Pringipal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 3,211 6,509 41,374 46,754 25,400 25,504 12,211 10,803
2022 3,277 6,443 42,420 45,708 25977 24,927 12,520 10,494
2023 3415 6,305 43,493 44,635 26,568 24,336 12,836 10,178
2024 3,574 6,146 44,593 43535 27,172 23,732 13,161 9,853
2025 3,725 5,995 45,721 42 407 27,789 23,114 13,494 9,520
2036-2040 31,863 16,737 316,483 124,157 186,200 68,320 93,405 21,665
2041-2045 39,147 9,453 358,577 82,063 208,350 46,172 105,828 9,242
2046-2050 25,240 1,505 406,268 34,372 302,473 23,023 24,421 207
2051-2055 - - 64,327 661 - - - -
2056-2059 - - - - - - - -
Total $ 160,494 ¥ 109,251 $1,889.132 $ 819,697 $1,145,051 $453,044 $443,050 $156,898
General Obligations Bonds
Year Ending Sewer Bond Refunding Bond Water Facilities Bond Water Facilities Bond
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 75,719 - 75,000 54,762 21,296 21,115 15,317 15,291
2022 75,719 - 80,000 51,876 20,118 20,467 15,780 14,828
2023 75,719 - 85,000 48,712 22,612 19,799 16,257 14,351
2024 75,719 - 90,000 44,503 21,355 17,521 16,748 13,859
2025 75,719 - 90,000 40,399 24,008 18,403 17,255 13,353
2026-2030 378,590 - 365,000 143,403 131,448 80,607 94.417 58,621
2031-2035 - - 175,000 90,600 147,755 58,227 109,574 43,462
2036-2040 - - 215,000 47,990 174,412 34,108 127,169 25,872
2041-2045 - - 95,000 4,403 156,106 7,486 100,913 6,150
2046-2050 - - - - - - - -
2051-2055 - - - - - - - -
2056-2060 - - - - - - - -
Total §757,185 b - $1,270,000 $526,648 $ 719,110 $277,733 $513,430 $ 205,787
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CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 9, Long-term Debt (Continued)

The following is a summary of long-term obligations of the pnimary government for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Business-Type Activities:

General obligation bonds
Premium on bonds
Accrued vacation

Total

Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds
Capital leases

Accrued vacation

Total

L hanges 1n LANeEr 1.ong- 1 erm Debt:

Details of Long-Term Indebtedness:

General Fund

General Obligation Notes;

$3,000,000 General Obligation Taxable Line of
Credit Note, through Powell Valley National Bank.
The line of credit is accessible through maturity

date.

Balance Additions/ Payments/ Balance
7/1/2019 Proceeds Reductions 6/30/2020
$7,163,610 $ - $ 266,158 $ 6,897,452

199,033 - 8,653 190,380
20,318 1,910 - 22,228
$7,382,961 5 1910 § 274,811 $ 7,110,060
$1,028,630 $ 20,800 & 153,718 $ 895,712
116,068 - 27,721 88,347
188,969 63,095 - 252,064
$1,333,667 § 28,893 $ 181,439 $ 1,236,123
Amount
Qutstanding

Government Proprietary

Activities Fund Types

& - 3 -
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Note 12.

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Pension Plan-Agent Multiple-Employer (Continued)

for the years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, respectively and for the school board $739 and
$2,190 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, respectively.

Net Pension Liability

The City's net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019. The total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30,
2018 rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019.

Actuarial Assumptions- General Employees

The total pension liability for Governmental and Business-Type Employees in the City's Retirement
Plan was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial
cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and
rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019.

Inflation 2.5 percent

Salary increases, including
flatio ercer ercel

Investment rate of return 6.75 percent, net of pension plan
investment expense, including inflation™®

* Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were
found to be approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an
assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 6.75%. However,
since the difference was minimal, and a more conservative 6.75% investment return assumption
provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-term
expected rate of return on investments was assumed to be 6.75% to simplify preparation of pension
liabilities.
Mortality rates:
Largest 10 - Non-Hazardous Duty: 20% of deaths are assumed to be service related
Pre-Retirement;
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy annuitant Rates al ages 81 and older projected with
scale BB To 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates.
Post-Retirement:
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with

scale BB to 2020: males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70
to 90.
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Note 12.°

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Pension Plan-Agent Multiple-Employer (Continued)

All Others (Non-10 Largest) — Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement
Healthy, and disabled)

Update to more current mortality table—RP 2014
rojected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Lowered rates at older ages and changed final
retirement 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates IAdjusted rates to better fit experience at each
ear age and service through 9 years of service

Disability Rates Lowered rates

Salary Scale No change

ILine of Duty Disability Increase rate from 14% to 15%

Discount Rate Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

Actuarial Assumptions - Public Safety Employees

The total pension liability for Public Safety employees in the Political Subdivision Retirement Plan was
based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method
and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward
to the measurement date of June 30, 2019.

Salary increases, including
inflation 3.5 percent — 4.75 percent
Investment rate of return 6.75 percent, net of pension plan

investment expense, including inflation*

* Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were
found to be approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an
assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 6.75%. However,
since the difference was minimal, and a more conservative 6.75% investment return assumption
provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-term
expected rate of return on investments was assumed 6.75% to simplify preparation of pension liabilities.

Mortality rates:
Largest 10 - Hazardous Duty: 70% of deaths are assumed service related
Pre-Retirement:

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy annuitant Rates at ages 81 and older projected with
scale BB to 2020; males 90% of rates; females set forward 1 year.
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Note 12.

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Pension Plan-Agent Multiple-Employer (Continued)

All Others (Non-10 Largest) — Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement Update to more current mortality table—RP 2014
healthy, and disabled) rojected to 2020
Retirement Rates ' Increased age 50 rates, and lowered rates at older
pges
'Withdrawal Rates IAdjusted rates to better fit experience at each
ear age and service through 9 years of service
Disability Rates IAdjusted rates to better fit experience
Salary Scale No change
ILine of Duty Disability Decrease rate from 60% to 45%
Discount rate Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension system investments was determined using a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension system investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for

1o ss¢ las.  _am g
Arithmetic Long- Weighted Average
Term Expected Long-Term Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Target Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return
Public Equity 34.00% 4.54% 1.82%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.69% 0.10%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 3.96% 0.59%
Real Assets 14.00% 5.76% 0.86%
Private Equity 14.00% 9.53% 1.43%
MAPS — Multi-Asset
Public Strategies 6.00% 3.52% 0.21%
PIP — Private
Investment Partnership 3.00% 6.29% 0.19%
100.00% 5.13%
Inflation 2.50%
*Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.63%

* The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.63%. However, one-year returns do not take into
account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for
the system, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various economic
conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a
median return of 6.75%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.

59


































































Note 14.

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)-Local Health Insurance (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability using the discount rate, as well as what the total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one

percentage point higher than the current rate:

1.00% Decrease Baseline Rate 1.00% Increase
1.80% 2.80% 3.80%
Primary Government
Total OPEB Liability $ 18972 % 9217 3 18,607
1.00% Decrease Baseline Rate 1.00% Increase
2.50% 3.50% 4.50%
School Board
Total OPEB Liability $ 415459 § 382,172 3 352,154
Chanoex in Total OPER Liahilitv
Increase (Decrease)
Primary Component Unit
Government School Board
Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 18,787 % 367,769
Changes for the year:
Service cost 51,713 16,662
Interest 2,138 11,576
Effect of plan changes - -
Effect of economic/demographics (63,457) -
Effect of liability gains of losses 62,613
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs 36 31,861
Benefit payments - (108,309)
Net changes (9,570) 14,403
Balance at June 30, 2020 $ 9217 § 382,172
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CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 15.  Other Post-Employment Benefits Liability- Virginia Retirement System Plans (Continued)

Teacher Health Insurance Credit Program

Governed by: Code of Virginia 51.1-1401(E) and may be
impacted as a result of funding provided to
school divisions by the Virginia General

Assembly.
Total rate: 1.20% of covered employee compensation.
June 30, 2020 Contribution $ 41,800
June 30, 2020 Contribution $ 42,061

Teacher Employee Virginia Local Disability Program

Governed by: Code of Virginia 51.1-1178(C) and may be
impacted as a result of funding provided to
school divisions by the Virginia General

Assembly.

Total rate; 0.41 % of covered employee compensation.

June 30, 2020 Contribution $3,129

June 30, 2019 Centribution $ 3,386

Tine of Thitv Act Praoram

R A Lode Of VIrgima Y-1-4Uu.1 and may be
impacted as a result of funding provided to
governmental agencies by the Virginia
General Assembly.

Total rate: $567.37 per covered full-time-equivalent
employee. Based on pay-as-you-go funding
rate.

June 30, 2020 Contribution $ 22484

June 30, 2019 Contribution $22,232

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense and Deferred Inflows and Qutflows of Resources Related to
OPED

The net OPEB liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total OPEB liabilities used to
calculate the net OPEB liabilities were determined by actuarial valuations as of that date. The covered
employer's propertion of the net OPEB liabilities, except for LODA, were based on the covered
employer’s actuarially determined employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2019 relative to
the total of the actuarially determined employer contributions for all participating employers. LODA
proportion was determined based on pay-as-you-go employer contributions instead of actuarially
determined contributions.
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CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 16. Summary of Pension and Other Postemployment Benefit Elements
. Total Component
Governmenta] ~ Business-Type Primary Unit (School
Activities Activities Government Board)
Net pension assct
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Schools-Non-Professionals - 3 - - 328,821
Total net pension asset h - 5 - - 328,821
Deferred outflows of resources — Related to Pensions
Change in assumptions
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-General Employees $ 330048 % 48,789 378,837 -
YRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-School Board Teachers - - - 547,737
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-School Board Non Prof - - - 406
Change in proportion and difference between Employer
Contributions and proportionate share of contributions.
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-School Board Teachers - - - 82,736
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-General Employees 216,383 31,987 248,370
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-School Board Teachers 581,822
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-School Board Non Prof 739
Total deferred outflow of resources -Pensions $ 546431 § 80.776 627,207 1,213,440
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB
Deferred outflow-Differences in expected/actual and assumptions
VRS-LODA h) 188,727 § - 188,727 -
VRS-GLI- General Employees 30,729 4,543 35272 -
HIC-Schools-Teachers - - - 12,768
VLDP-Schools-Teachers - - - 219
VRS-GLI- Schools-Non-Professionals - - - 3,930
VRS-GLI- Schools-Professionals - - - 37,719
VRS LODA 25,584 - 25,584 -
VRS-GLI-General Employees 15,642 2,312 17,954 -
VRS-HIC-Schools-Teachers - - - 44,527
VRS-VLDP-Schools-Teachers - - - 4,893
VRS-GLI-Schools-Non-Professionals - - - 1,372
VRS-GLI-Schools-Professionals - - - 19,295
Total deferred outflow of resources -OPEB h 260682 § 6.855 267,537 213,351
Net pension liability
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan $ 26747 % 39476 306,523 -
VRS-Cost Shaning-Multiple-Employer-Schoo! Board Teachers - - - 5,531,387
Total net pension liability $ 267047 % 39476 306,523 5,531,387
Net OPEB liability
Local Health $ 7840 % 1,377 9217 382,172
VRS-LODA 594329 - 594,329 -
VRS-GL1-General Employees 237,039 33,040 272,079 -
VRS-HIC-Schools-Teachers - - - 547,072
VRS-VLDP-Schools-Teachers - - - 1,001
VRS-GLI-Schools-Non-Professionals - - - 20,015
VRS-GLI-Schools-Professionals - - - 290,956
Total net OPEB liability h) 839207 § 316418 §75.625 1.241.216
Deferred inflows of resources — Related to Pensions
Differences between expected and actual experience
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-General Employees h) 132440 § 19,578 152,018 -
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-School Board Teachers - - - 121,456
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-School Board Non Prof 17,545
Change in assumptions
VRS-Defined Benefit Per  n Plan-General Employees 5455 807 6,262 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-General Employees 467,182 69,061 536,243
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-School Board Teachers 354,199
VYRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-School Board Non Prof 134
Change in proportion and difference between Emplover
Contributions and proportionate share of contributions
VRS-Defined Benefit Pension Plan-School Board Teachers - - - 714,818
Total deferred inflow of resources -Pensions $ 605077 § 89.446 694,523 1,208,152
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CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 17. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation In regard to litigation involving the City of Norton, Virginia, we are not awar¢ of any material
contingent liabilities that could affect the financial statements.

Note 18. Risk Management

The City maintains general liability, auto and workers' compensation insurance coverage through the
Virginia Municipal Liability Pool. Other insurance coverage (including fire, equipment, police liability,
public officials liability and workers' compensation and accidental death on volunteer fireman) is
maintained through commercial insurance companies.

Note 19. Surety Bonds

Amount

National Grange Mutual Insurance Company - Surety
*Barbara Muir, Treasurer $ 200,000
Kristy Wells, Deputy Treasurer 100,000

National Grange Mutual Insurance Company - Surety
Fred Ramey, City Manager 200,000
Jeffery Shupe, Director of Finance 100,000
Mayor and City Council A 10,000
A1l Min, amanlAcanas hlanlrat hand 10 AN

Virginia Association of Counties Self Insurance Risk Pool (VaCorp):

Norton City School Employees — blanket bond 250,000
Selective Insurance Company of America:

Sara Ring, Director (Social Services) 100,000

Elizabeth Fleming, CfTice Manager 100,000

All social workers 100,000

All employees other than Director, Office Manager, and social workers 90,000

*The coverage in respect to the Treasurer of the City does not apply to pecuniary loss sustained by the
City by reason or in consequence of the failure of the Treasurer to faithfully and fully discharge
according to law the duties pertaining to said position.
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Note 22,

Note 23.

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

New Accounting Pronouncements

The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements have been implemented
in the current financial statements:

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt. Including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements, requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to
financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms
specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences,
significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant acceleration clauses,
This Statement will improve the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial
statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. This Statement will be
effective for the year ending June 30, 2020,

Future Accounting Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following Statements which
are not yet effective. The effective dates below are updated based on Statement No, 95, Postponement
of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities in January 2017. This Statement establishes
standards of accounting and financial reporting for fiduciary activities. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019,

N JUNC LU/, LG UMNJD DIUCU JLALEINCHL [T, 0/, LCAadTy. 1D DELSHICIIL 0SS S1diadias ol
accounting and financial reporting for leases by lessees and lessors. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021.

The GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests, an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 14 and No. 61 in August 2018. This Statement improves the consistency and comparability of
reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and improves the
relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity
interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported
as an investment if a government's holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment.
A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured using the
equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities,
a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund.
Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value. For all other
holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should report the
legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the equity
interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This
Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
results in the government being financially accountable for the legally separate organization and,
therefore, the government should report that organization as a component unit.

This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity
interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
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CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER’S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY (Unaudited)
VRS TEACHER RETIREMENT PLAN
June 30, 2020

Employer’s Proportionate

EXHIBIT 16

Plan Fiduciary Net

Employer’s Employer’s Share of the Net Pension Position as a
Proportion of the Net  Proportionate Share of Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of the
Year Ended Pension Liability the Net Pension Percentage of its Covered Total Pension
June 30 (Asset) Liability Covered Payroll Payroll Liability

2020 0.04233% 5,531,387 8 3,710,600 149.07% 73.51%
2019 0.04179% 5,218,000 3,505,048 148.87% 74.81%
2018 0.04792% 5,893,000 3,773,626 156.16% 72.92%
2017 0.04998% 7,004,000 3,807,613 183.95% 68.28%
2016 0.04765% 5,997,000 3,542,739 169.28% 70.68%
2015 0.50360% 6,086,000 4,073,289 149.41% 70.58%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Since 2015 was the first year for this presentation, only six years of data is available. However,

additional years will be inctuded as they become available.

The covered payroll amounts above are for the measurement period, which is the twelve months prior to the school division's fiscal year.

The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT 17
CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTREIBUTIONS (Unaudited)
VYRS TEACHER RETIREMENT PLAN

June 30, 2020
Entity Fiscal Actuarially Contributions in Relation Contribution Contributions as a
Year Ended Determined to Actuarially Deficiency Percentage of Covered
June 30 Contribution Determined Contribution (Excess) Covered Payroll Payroll
2020 b3 581,822 5 581,822 5 - b3 3,710,600 15.68%
2019 545,978 545,978 - 3,505,048 15.58%
2018 574,369 574,369 - 3,571,615 16.08%
2017 544,525 544,525 - 3,773,026 14.43%
2016 530,304 530,304 - 3,807,613 13.93%
2015 511,134 511,134 - 3,542,739 14.43%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Since 2015 was the first year for this presentation, only six years of data is available,
Additional years will be included as they become available.

The covered payroll amounts above are for the entity’s fiscal year - i.e. the covered payroll on which required contributions were based for the same
year.

The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this statemnent. 107









EXHIBIT 20
CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S SHARE OF NET OPEB LIABILITY (Unaudited)

June 30, 2020
Employer's
Proportionate Share
Employer's Employer's of the Net OPEB
*Entity Fiscal Portion of the Proportionate Share of Liability (Asset) as Plan Fiduciary Net
Year Ended Net OPEB the Net OPEB Liability Employer's % of its Covered Position as a % of the
June 30 Liability (Asset) (Asset) Covered Payroll Payroll Total OPEB Liability

VRS-Group Life Insurance-General Employees

2020 0.01672% 3 272,079 3,278,705 8.30% 52.00%
2019 0.01688% 257,000 3,210,080 8.01% 51.22%
2018 0.01731% 260,000 3,193,228 8.14% 48.86%

VRS-Line of Duty Act (LODA)

2020 0.16565% ) 594,329 906,426 65.57% 0.79%
2019 0.19177% 601,000 869,874 69.09% 0.60%
2018 0.15782% 415,000 858,463 48.34% 1.30%
VRS-Group Life Insurace-School Board-Teachers
2020 0.01788% ) 290,956 3,505,048 8.30% 52.00%
2019 0.01878% 286,000 3,571,612 8.01% 51.22%
2018 0.02046% 308,000 3,773,626 8.16% 48.86%
VRS-Group Life Insurance-School Board-General Employees
2020 0.00123% ) 20,015 241,479 829% 52.00%
2019 0.00113% 17,000 214,450 7.93% 51.22%
2018 0 0N12A% 19 000 7331 2RI R 149% 48 R6%,

VYRS-Health Credit-Teachers

2020 0.04179% s 547,072 3,505,048 15.61% 8.97%
2019 0.04412% 560,000 3,569,234 15.69% 8.06%
2018 0.04782% 607,000 3,773,992 16.08% 7.04%

VRS-VLDP-School Board-Teachers

2020 0.17222% ) 1,001 825,926 0.12% 49.21%
2019 0.1656%% 1,000 617,806 0.16% 46.18%
2018 0.21792% 1,000 614,962 0.16% 31.96%

*The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Since 2018 was the first year for this presentation, only three years of dala is available.
Additional years will be included as they become available.

The covered payroll amounts above are for the measurement period, which is twelve months prior to the entity's fiscal year end.

The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this financial statement, 110



CITY OF NORTON, YIRGINIA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS (Unaudited)

EXHIBIT 21

June 30, 2020
Entity Fiscal Contractually  Contributions Related to Contribution Contributions as a %
Year Ended Required Contractually Required Deficiency Employer's Covered  of Covered Employee
June 30 Contribution Contribution {Excess) Employee Payroll Payroll
VRS-Group Life Insurance-General Employees
2020 $ 17,911 5 17,911 - 3,444,338 0.52%
2019 17,049 17,049 - 3,278,705 0.52%
2018 16,692 16,692 - 3.210,080 0.52%
VRS-Line of Duty Act (LODA)
2020 $ 25,584 $ 25,584 - 905,054 2.83%
2019 22232 22232 - 906,426 2.45%
2018 20,426 20,426 - 869,874 235%
VRS-Group Life Insurace-School Board-Teachers
2020 3 19,295 L3 19,295 - 3,710,600 0.52%
2019 18,226 18,226 - 3.505,048 0.52%
2018 18,591 18,591 - 3,571,615 0.52%
VRS-Group Life Insurance-School Board-General Employees
2020 1,372 $ 1,372 - 263,849 0.52%
mia 1 784 1784 n TA1 A0 N §704
VRS-Health Credit-Teachers
2020 44,527 b3 44,527 - 3,710,600 1.20%
2019 42,061 42,061 - 3,505,048 1.20%
2018 43,889 43,889 - 3,569,234 1.23%
VRS-VLDP-School Board-Teachers
2020 4,893 b 4,893 - 1,193,351 0.41%
2019 3,386 3,386 - 825926 0.41%
2018 1,915 1,915 - 617,806 031%

*The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

Schedule is intended to show infoermation for 10 years. Since 2018 was the first year for this presentation, only three years of data is available.
Additional years will be included as they become available.

The covered payroll amounts above are for the measurement period, which is twelve months prior to the entity's fiscal year end.

The notes to required supplementary infromation are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA SCHEDULE 3
SCHEDULE OF REYENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Yariance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounta Positive
Original Final Actunl (Negative)
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GENERAL FUND:
Revenue from local sources
General property laxes:
Real property 3 2,050,000 § 2,050,000 § 2,107,104 § 57.104
Real and personal public service
corporation property 235,000 235,000 266,436 31,486
Personal property 550,400 550,400 614,044 63.614
Machinery and tools taxes 102,500 102,500 116,563 14,063
Penalties and interest 80,000 80,000 50,898 (29,102)
Total peneral property taxes 3,017,900 3,017,900 3,155,065 137,165
Other local taxes'
Local sales and use taxes 1,525,000 1,525,000 1,664,033 139,033
Utility taxes 130,000 130,000 125,415 (4,585)
Business license laxes 713,000 173,000 801,979 28,979
Communication taxes 200,000 200,000 174,981 (25.019)
Motor vehicle lenses 20,000 80.000 80,937 237
Bank stock taxes 40,000 40,000 40,193 193
Recordation taxes 25.000 25,000 16,012 (B.988)
Tobacce taxes 200 200 - (200}
Hotel and motet room taxes 170,000 170,000 104,019 (65,981)
Reswaurant food laxes 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,479,388 79,338
Coal road improvement laxes 20,000 20,000 31.997 11,997
Cigarette 1ax 160,000 160,000 157,455 (2,545)
Total other local taxes 4,523,200 4,523,200 4,676,409 153,209
Permits, fees, and licenses:
Animal licenses 500 500 155 (345}
Permits and other licenses 5,150 16,700 12,236 (4.464)
Fines and forfeitures 20,750 20,750 3,075 (17.675)
Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue from use of money 30,000 30,000 35,601 5,601
Revenue from use of property 17,500 17,500 16.507 (993)
Total use of mongy and property 47,500 47,500 52,108 4,608
Charges for services:
Court cost - - - -
Shenff's fees 1,000 1,000 702 (298)
Charges for sanitation and waste removal 411,500 411,500 410,675 (825)
Charges for parks and recreation 7,000 16,500 17,400 900
NFD revenue recovery - - . R
Total charges for services 419,500 429,000 428,777 {223)
Miscellaneous 24,650 57,050 75,268 18,218
Recovered costs:
Recovered cost - Schocl Board 5,000 5,000 3.380 (1,426
Regovered Cost - Sireeis 30,000 50,000 50,378 378
Recovered Cost - NIDA 55,000 55.000 57,883 2,883
Recovered Cost - Regional Jail - - - -
Cost allocation plan - Water and Sewer Fund 13,950 13.950 13,950 -

The nales 1o financial statements are an 1ategral pan of this statement 11&












CITY OF NORTON, YIRGINIA SCHEDULE 3
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND (Continued)
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
GENERAL FUND (Continued):
Commonwealih's atlorney 32,500 32,500 43,196 (10,696)
Total Judicial Administration 402,730 409,230 417,257 (8,027)
Public Safety
Law Enforcement and TrafTic Contral.
Police department 1,198,550 1,198,550 1,235,844 {37,294)
Traffic controd 22.500 38,500 44,422 {5.522)
E-91t 491,500 316,500 528,020 {11.520)
Emergency management funds 9,500 50,500 56,247 {5,747)
Total Law Enforcement and TrafTic Control £,722,050 1,804,050 1,864,533 (60,483)
Fire and Rescue Services
Volunteer fire department 243,050 257,550 259,279 {1.729)
Ambutance and rescue services 30,000 30,000 8,247 21,753
Total Fire and Rescue Services 273,050 287,550 267 526 20,024
Correction and Detention
Purchase of service from Wise County H 70,000 % 70,000 § 100,922 § {30,922)
Juvenille detention 66,164 66,164 66,164 -
Contribution to regional jail 195,151 285,151 260,689 24,462
Total Correction and Detention 331,315 421,315 427,775 {6,460)
Inspections.
Building 98,200 98,200 95,323 2,877
Other Protection’
Ammal control 55,300 55,300 39,845 {4,545)
L e iem v s s, Aimal nmemm~ 1 e&n 1L &en 1 NEn £
Total Public Saety 2,481,465 2,667,965 2,716,052 (48,087)
Public Works:
Maintenance of Highways, Streets, Bndges and Sidewalks
General engineering/administration 30,000 56,350 138,944 (82,594}
Highways, streets, bridges and sidewalks 687,600 1.212,600 1,375,589 {162,989)
Storm drainage 5,000 5,000 744 4,256
Street hghts 120,000 120,000 107,577 12.423
Snow and ice removal 43,000 45,000 23,966 21,034
Curbs and guttenng 3,000 3,000 - 1,000
Total Maintenance of Highways, Streets. Bridges and
Sidewalks 1,190,600 1.441.950 1,646,820 {204,870)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement 120






CITY OF NORTON, YIRGINIA SCHEDULE 3
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND {Continued}
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Varianee with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Finzl Actual {Negative)
GENERAL FUND (Continued):
Library:

Payments 1o regional library 30,285 30,285 30,285 -

Tolal Parks, Recreatien and Cultural 468,134 824,534 497,794 26,740
Community Development'

Planning and Community Development:

Planming 103,800 108,800 45240 63,5560
Planming-contnbution to Lenowisco 8,123 8,123 8121 -
Community access channel 6,000 11,000 8,098 2,902
Comribution 10 Chamber of Commerce 1,979 1,979 1,979 -
Contribution to Black Diamond Development 200 200 200 .
Contribution 10 Airport Commissicn 2,645 2,645 2,645 .
Capital outlay 449 000 450,000 994,547 (544,547)

Total Planming and Community Development 571,747 582,747 1,060.832 (478,085)

Debt Servige:

Principal 154,006 177,496 181,439 (3.943)

Interest 30,472 30,472 30,472 -
Tolal Debt Service 184,568 207 968 211,911 (3,943)

Other Financing Uses'

Transfer to welfare fund 292,527 292,527 240,000 52,527
Total Financing Sources 292,527 292,527 240,000 52,527
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 10,280,800 11,931,008 11,563,513 367,695

Special Revenue Funds:
Virginia Public Assistance Fund
Health and Welfare-
‘elfare/Social Service
Welfare/food stamp administration $ 1,303,217 8 1,303,217 % 1,313,087 % {9.870)
Total Welfare/Social Services 1,303,217 1,303,217 1,313,087 (5,870)
Totat Health and Welfare 1,303,247 1,303,217 1,313,087 {9,870y
Total Virginia Public Assistance Fund 1,303,217 1,303,217 1,313,087 {9.870%
Revolving Loan Fund:
Communty Development:
Planning and Community Development:
Contribution to componet unit - NIDA - - - -
Total Welfare/Social Services - - - -
Total Community Development - - - -
Tolal Revolving Loan Fund - - . -
Drug and Gambling Investigative Funds:

Public safety 70,000 70,000 30,605 39,395
Total Drug and Gambling Investigatnve Funds 70,000 70,000 30,605 39,395
TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 1,373,217 1,373,217 1,343,692 29,525
GRAND TOTAL - EXPENDITURES - PRIMARY

GOVERNMENT FUNDS 5 11654017 § 13,304,225 § 12,607,005 § 397,220
Excess of revenue and other financing sources over expenditures
and other financing uses - budget basis 5 (300,000} % (916,658) § (228,094}
Net appropriations from fund balance
Prior year surplus 300,000 839,363
Prior year encumbrances - 77,295

Budget - excess of revnue, other financing scurces and
appropnations from fund balance over expenditures
and other financing uses - -

The notes 1o financial staiements are an integral part of this statement 122
























Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental acti  es net position
Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net position
Primary government
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net position

Notes:

TABLE 1

CITY OF TON, VIRGINIA
NET POSITION BY APONENT (UNAUDITED)
LASTT ISCAL YEARS
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
$ 8542222 § 8,560,781 § 8207586 8,519.840 5 R336,774 § 8,014,749 § 5586395 § 4,136,516 § 3,921,732 § 3325755
2,842,279 2,821,064 1,976,543 870,666 763,727 232,010 1,367,414 1,541,677 1,791,952 2,446,292
$ 11,384,501 § 11,381,845 § 10,184,129 9,390,506 § 9,100,501 §% 8,246,759 § 6,983.809 § 5,678,193 § 5713684 § 5,772,047
$ 9958801 $ 9920,024 § 9965531 10,369,190  $10,688,937 $10,806,022 $10,739,857 § 9,362,217 § 7587254 § 6,989,99]
- - - - - - 112,741 588.404 - -
84,537 (313,313} (412,570} (499,430} (573,330) (607,646) (428,312) (348,054) (219,531) (205,952}
5 10043338 § 9606711 § 9,552,961 9,869,760 510,115,607 $10,198,376 § 10,424,286 §$10,002,567 § 7,367,723 § 6,784,039
$ 18501,023 § 18480805 $ 18,173,117 18,889,030 519,025,711 §$18820,771 §16326,252 313,498,733 §11,508986 510,315,746
- - - - - - 112,741 988,404 - -
2,926,816 2,507,751 1,563,973 371,236 150,397 {375,636} 969,102 1,193,623 1,572,421 2,240,340
$ 21427839 § 20,988,556 § 19,737,090 19,260,266  $19.216,108 $ 18,445,135 $17408,095 $15,680,760 $13,081,407 § 12,556,086

Accounting standards require net position be reported in three categories in the financial statements:
net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Net position is considered restricted
when 1) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other
governments or 2} impc | by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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Post-GASB 54 implementation:

General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved
Nonspendabie
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total general fund

All Other Govermmental Funds

Reserved

[nreserved, reported in:
Special Revenue fund

Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned

Total all other governmental funds

TABLE 3

CITY NORTON, YIRGINIA
FUND BALANCES, ( RNMENTAL FUNDS (UNAUDITED)
LA EN FISCAL YEARS
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
% - 3 - h) - - b - 5 - h) - 3 - b -
355,486 490,562 497,058 490,329 574,892 - - - -
50,454 82,295 48,502 9,504 - 372,893 3474106 431,267 487,780
2,750,949 2,794,565 2,227,802 408,777 - 1,210,736 1,332,585 1,250,314 1,691,149
$ 3,156,889 § 3367422 % 2,773,362 908,610 % 574892 § 1,583620 § 1,680,001 % 1,681,581 §$ 2,178,929
3 - b - % - - b - b - h) - $ - b -
413,444 432,120 373,108 361,062 357,780 344,627 343,830 331,190 318,897
231,123 230,008 272,560 153,340 14,205 - - - -
- - - - - {55,870) (120,700} (124,908) (96,205}
$ 644,567 % 662,128 % 645,668 514402 % 371,985 % 288,757 % 223,130 % 206,282 % 222,692
balance.

1) GASB 54 was enacted for the year ended June 30, 2011 which changed the method of reporting
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TABLE 8

CITY OF RORTON, VIRGINIA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS (UNAUDITED)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal
Years Taxes Levied Current Percentage Delinquent Percent of Outstanding Percent of
Ended for the Tax of Levy Tax Total Tax Total Tax Delinquent Delinquent
June 30 Year (1) (2) Collections Collected Collections  Collections (3) Collections Taxes of Levy
2020 5 3,158,804 3,091,469 97.87% § 12,517 3,103,986 98.26% 397,967 12.60%
2019 3,136,438 2,840,119 90.55% 85,936 2,926,055 93.29% 470,303 14.99%,
2018 3,108,516 2,879,431 92.63% 85,045 2,964,476 95.37% 336,115 10.81%
207 3,166,319 2,925,590 92.40% 142,234 3,067,324 95.89% 346,570 10.95%
2016 3,106,353 2,780,558 89.51% 140,006 2,920,564 94.02% 369,906 11.91%
2015 2,731,203 2,545,590 93.20% 56,280 2,601,870 95.26% 320,961 11.75%
2014 2,800,408 2,559,728 91.41% 247,834 2,307,562 100.26% 257,050 5.18%
2013 2,579,781 2,384,644 92.44% 109,433 2,494,077 96.68% 378,758 14.68%
2012 2,378,441 2,212,823 93.04% 165,549 2,378,372 100.00% 320,362 13.47%
2011 2,470,143 2,240,426 90.70% 61974 2,302,400 93.21% 310,935 12.59%

(1) Exclusive of penalties and interest.
(2) Does not include land redemptions
(3) Commonwealth reimbursement for aute tax included in total collections.
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CITY OF NO IN, VIRGINIA
RATIOS OF QUTST IING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN CAL YEARS
Fiscal Governmental Activities Busines: pe Activities
Years General Gene| tbligation Component Percentage
Ended Obligation Capital Water Yastwarer Unit Total of Personal Per
June 30 Bonds Leases ids Bonds Debt Income Capita
2020 $ 895,712 § 88,347 $ 7,087,832 § 7,150,000 15,221,891 9.10% 3,897
2019 1,028,630 116,068 7,362,643 7,710,000 16,217,341 10.29% 4,152
2018 1,093,377 . 7,629,457 8,250,000 16,972,834 11.80% 4,343
2017 1,208,200 - 7,893,350 8,765,000 17,866,550 14.07% 4,632
2016 1,316,121 29,438 8,143,884 9,260,000 18,749,443 13.54% 4,752
2015 1,363,000 58,141 8,139,139 9,784,434 19,344,714 12.98% 4,821
2014 1,285,000 110,961 7,804,349 10,341,185 19,541,495 12.65% 4,817
2013 1,355,000 161,992 8,080,638 10,901,644 20,499,274 12.13% 4,889
2012 8,988,191 224,823 6,108,271 2,108,327 17,429,612 10.55% 4,252
2011 9,113,731 125972 3,761,934 2,626,591 15,628,228 9.40% 3,949
Notes: 1) Center for Public Service at the University of Virginia.
2) Includes all general tong-term debt obligations.
TABLE 10
CITY OF NO N, VIRGINIA
RATHIO OF GENERAL BONDED T OUTSTANDING (UNAUDITED)
LAST TEN CAL YEARS
General Bonded
Debt
Fiscal Outstanding Percentage ol
Years General Bonded  Actual Taxable
Ended Obligation Value of Per
June 30 Bonds Property Capita
2020 14,943,164 5.06% 3,826
2019 15,902,240 5.35% 4,152
2018 16,765,144 5.67% 4,343
2017 17,650,210 5.95% 4,632
2016 18,495,011 6.46% 4,752
2015 18,697,886 6.65% 4,821
2014 18,327,250 6.46% 4817
2013 17,853,819 6.37% 4,889
2012 13,411,630 4.82% 4,252
2011 11,020,140 4.24% 3,949

1) Details regarding the city's oustanding debt can be tound in the notes to the fi

ial statements

TABLE 9
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Assessed valuations

Assessed value of taxed real properly

Legal debt margin
Debt limit - 10 percent of total
assessed value

Debt applicable to limitation
Total bonded debt

Less - Business-Type

Total amount of debt applicable to
debt limitation

Legal debt margin

Total net debt as applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit

TABLE 11

CITY OFNOI N, VIRGINIA
LEGAL DEBT MARGINE  RMATION (UNAUDITED)
LASTTEN| ALEYARS
2020 2019 2018 2 2016 2015 2014 013 2012 011
258,083,803 § 260,729.950  § 261,104,838 $260; )81 5250527769 5244929946 $ 246,149,132 5 245426183  § 245,536,691  $ 228,064,866
25,808,380 26,072,595 26,110,484 26 08 25,052,777 24,492,995 24,614,913 24,542,618 24,553,669 22,806,487
15,221,891 16,217,341 16,972,834 17, 350 18,749,443 19,344,714 19,541,495 20,499,274 17,429,612 15,628,228
{190,380) (199,033) (207,686) ¢ 140 (224,994) (588,689) (1,103,284) {2,483,463) (3,793,159 (4,482,116}
15031,511 16,018,308 16,765,148 17, 210 18,524,449 18,756,025 18,438,211 18,015,811 13,636,453 11,146,112
10,776,869 §_ 10054687 § 9345336 § 8. /98 § 6528328 $ 5736970 § 6176702 § 6526807 5 10917216 § 11660375
58.24% 61.44% 64.21%

0% 73.94% 76.58% 7491% 73.41% 55.54% 48.87%

140






TABLE 13

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS (UNAUDITED)
LAST TEN YEARS
Personal Per Capita
Fiscal Income Median Median School Unemployment
Year Population (in thousands) Income Age Enrollment Rate
2020 3,906 167,364,288 42,848 39.8 776 9.80%
2019 3,906 157,614,912 40,352 39.8 784 3.90%
2018 3,908 143,876,928 36,816 40.0 767 5.60%
2017 3,857 126,957,012 32,916 40.0 764 5.90%
2016 3,946 138,504,600 35,100 39.0 814 6.50%
2015 4,013 148,994,664 37,128 38.0 820 7.80%
2014 4,057 154,425,648 38,064 38.0 828 8.20%
2013 4,193 143,903,760 34,320 39.0 887 8.70%
2012 4,099 146,858,972 35,828 39.0 882 8.10%
2011 3,958 143,247,936 36,192 40.0 852 7.60%
Sources: Weldon Cooper Center for Information, Bureau of Economic Analysis,

Viriginia Employment Commission, and Norton City School Board
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TABLE 15

CITY OF NOI N, VIRGINIA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNM I EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION (UNAUDITED)
LASTTEN  TAL YEARS
2020 2019 2018 2000 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Function
General government

Management services 4 4 4 4 3.5 35 3.5 4 4 4.0

Finance 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4.0

Planning 1 0 1 ! 1.5 1.5 1.5 2 2 2.0

Other 6 6 6.5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6.0
Public safety

Ofticers 16 16 16 6 16 16 16 16 16 17.5

Dispatchers/Clerks 8.5 8.5 85 5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 7

Sheriff's Office 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Animal Control 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | 1 1

Building 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 H | 1

Emergency Management 0 0 0 it 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5

Fire 1.5 1.5 1.5 1 1 ; 1 1 1 1
Public works

Engineering 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Streets 9 9 9 9 9 9 10 11.5 11.5 13

Refuse Collections 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 5.5 5.5 5

General Properties is 4.5 4 5 5 5 5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Parks and recreation

Mai  nance 6.5 6.5 5.5 3 4 4.5 4.5 4.5 5.5 5.5

Other 1 1 ] 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Water operatings

Administration 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Plan Operatins 7.5 7.5 7.5 7 6 6 6 7 7 7

Mai  nance 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Social Services

Administrative 5 5 5 5 5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5

Eligibility 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7

Social Worker 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Source: City of Norton's Finance Deparatment
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Function

TABLE 17

Public Safety
Police stations
Fire stations
Number of patrol units

Public Works
Streets (lane miles)
Streetlights
Traffic signals

Water operations
Miles of water main
Number of fire hydrants

Wastewater operations
Miles of sinilary sewers
Miles of storm sewers

CITY OF NOR i, VIRGINIA
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTIC "FUNCTION (UNAUDITED)
LAST TENF AL YEARS
2020 2019 2018 _ 17 2016 2015 2014 2013 212 2011
1 1 1 1 t 1 1 1 1 1
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 p3 2
25 25 25 25 24 22 16 16 15 15
8273 82.73 8273 82.73 82,73 8273 82.73 82.73 82.73 82.73
479 479 479 474 479 440 440 440 440 440
9 9 9 9 9 9 9 8 8 8
55.31 55.31 55.31 55.31 55.31 55.31 5531 5531 55.31 55.31
257 255 255 255 255 255 255 255 250 250
41.16 41.16 41.16 41.16 41.16 41,16 41,16 41.16 41.16 41.16
9.2 9.2 92 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 92 92 9.2
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Norton
Norton, Virginia 24273

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns, issued by the Auditor
of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggrepate
remaining fund information of the City of Norton, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Norton, Virginia’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020, we considered the
City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the City's financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
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misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in the internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
agreements noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Listening better, trying harder, caring more. THAT’S RODEFER MOSS.



We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City of Norton, Virginia in a separate letter dated
March 31, 2021.

Response to Findings
The City of Norton’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of

findings and questioned costs. The City of Norton's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.
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Norton, Virginia
March 31, 2021
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance,

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Norton, Virginia
March 31, 2021
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The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance with the provisions referred 1o in the preceding paragraph..
With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City had not complied, in all
material respects, with those provisions.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, the Auditor of Public Accounts
and applicable state agencies, and is not intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

g o ¥ 0 e

Norton, Virginia
March 31, 2021



Pass-throogh
Federal Entity
CFDA
Numier Identifying Number
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Pass-Throuph Payments;
State Department of Agriculture:
Chld and Adult Care Food Program 10 558
Child Nutrition Cluster:
Schoal Lunch Program (Mot D) 10 555
School Lunch Program 10555
School Lunch Program-COVID 19 Lunch Program 10555
School Breakfan Program 10 353
Summer Food Serviee Program for Children (Note D) 10559
Summer Food Service Program lor Children 10559
State Department of Social Services:
Suppl 1 Nuontion A Program-SNAP Cluster 10 561
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:
Pass-Throupgh Paymenks:
State Department of Social Services:
Foster Care - Tale V-E 91 638
Social Services Block Grant 93 667
Adopuon Assistance 91659
Medical essistance program-Medicaid Clusier 93 T
Low Income Home Energy Aszsistance 93 568
Safe and Swble Families 93 556
Refugee and Entrani Assistance 93 566
Adapuon end Legal Guarduanship Encentive Programs 93 603
Children's Health Insurance Program 93 767
Siephanie Tubbs Janes Child Welfare Services Program 93 645
Chalce Foster Care Independenes Program 93674
477 Cluster:
TANF 93554
Child Care Mandelory Match 93 596
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
Pass-Through Paymenta:
State Department of Educanion:
Rural Education %4 358
Tide | Granis 4010
Special bducaban-Grants (o S1ates 84 027 HO27A1RDIOT7
Special Educsuion-Preschool Grantg 84 173 Hi73A180112
Special Projects:
State Grants for Strengthenung the Skalls of Teachers and
Instruction i Mathematigs, Fareign Languages and Compuler
Vocetwonal Education + Basic Grama io Staics R4.044
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Community Deviepment Block Grants 14 225
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Edward Byme Memonial Juguce Asgistance Grant 16738
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Cluster:
Capilahzation Grans for Drinking Water Siale Revobymg Funds 66 46k WSL-037-18
Capnahzation Grams for Dnnking Water State Revotving Funds 56 468 WSL-038-1%
U.S. OFFICE OF NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL POLICY
High Imesnity Drug Traflicking Arcas Program u5.000 G20APDONIA
High Imesniey Drug Traflicking Areas Program 95 00k GIVAPOODIA
APFALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION
Appalechien Atca Development 23002
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Aleohol Open Commncr Requirements 20607
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
Highway Plannisg and Canstrucuon 20205 FLIR-146-131
Highway Planning and Canstrucuon 20.205 FLIR-14-134
Highway Planning and Construcuon 30 205 UPC 14651
Highway Planning and Construclion 20205 FLi-146-126
DEPARTMET OF THE TREASURY
Coronavorus Relief Fund 21.01%

TOTAL

The accompanying noles are an integral part of Lhis schedule

CITY OF NORTON
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Total

Federal Expenditures

37848

24378
ZR1.256
TH635
JOR 699
R50
3440

148,696

59.768
72830
61954
153,929
16,923
12.083
133
1,950
2.4R0
204
774

93803
17036

30,133

179.034

163.047
6882

16,384

594,138

5012

144701
43499

5539
7.147

9628

7.762

26,145
30.000
14819
2870

18,081

PR

5 268
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CITY OF NORTON
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) included the federal award activity of the City of Norton under programs of the lederal govemment
of the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 118 Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Adnumsirative Requirements, Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards  (Uniform Guidance). B the Schedule p only a selected portion
of the City of Morton, it is not intended te and dees not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the City of Morton.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the | basis of accounting, Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance and/or OMB Circular A-87, Coss Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governmenis . wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as
to reimbursement.

NOTE C - INDIRECT COST RATE

The City of Norton did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
NOTE D - FOOD DONATION:

Nonmonelary assistance is reperied in the Schedule at the fair market value of the commodities recetved and disbursed. At Jume 30, 2020, the Norton City School Board had no
commodities in inventory

NOTE E - SUBRECTPIENTS

No awards were passed through to subrecipients.
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CITY OF NORTON
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2020
SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS
n The auditor's repor! expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of the City of Norlon, Virginia were prepared in accordance
with GAAP.
2) No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the Ffinancial statements of the City of Norion, Virginia, are reporied in the Auditor's Report on

Intermal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditine Standards. No material weaknessess are reported.

3) No instances of non-compliance material to the financial statements of the City of Norlon, Virginia, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards , were disclosed during the audit.

4) No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in the Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable for each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No matenal
weaknesses are reported.

5) The Auditor's report on Compliance for the Major Federal Award Programs for the City of Norlon, Virginia, expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major federal programs.

6) Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) are reported in this Schedule.

7) The programs tesied as major programs were:
Communiiy Development Block Grants - CFDA No, 14.228
477 Cluster:
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) - CFDA No. 83.558
Child Care Mandatory Match - CFDA No. 93.596
Highway Ptanning Grant Cluster:
Highway Planming and Construction - CFDA No. 200205
Medicaid Cluster:
Medicol Assistance Program - CFDA No. 93.778

8) The threshoid for distinguishing types A & B programs was $750,000.

%) The City of Nerlon, Virginia, was determined not to be a low risk auditee.

NONE

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT
NONE

155



CITY OF NORTON
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
Year Ended June 30, 2020

FINDINGS - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

Maierial Weaknesses:

2019-001-Audit Completion

Condition: The City did not complete their financial information for audit in a tmely manner.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City implement policies and procedures to ensure that the required financial stalement schedules and

reconciliations are avaitable for audit to allow sufficient time for completion of the audit process by the prescribed deadlines.

Current Status: The recommendation was adopted and procedures implemented beginning in July 2619 No similar findings were noted in the 2020 audit.

2019-002-Financial Analysis-Surplus

Condition: The School Board failed to determine the end of year surplus thus effecting the ability to determine accurate amounts available for expenditure
with budgelary appropriations.

Recommendation. We recommend that the School Board implement procedures to ensure the financial reports and information utilized for surplus analysis
are accurate.

Current Status: The School Board adopted the recommedation and actively implemented procedures beginning in July 2019. No similar findings were noted
in the 2020 audit.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

There were no pnor year findings.
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